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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Michael McMahon, New York City Council

          4  Chair of the Committee on Sanitation and Solid

          5  Waste. It is my privilege to convene this meeting on

          6  October 10th, 2006. I am joined by my colleagues in

          7  the Council, Mr. Larry Seabrook, from the Bronx,

          8  Andrew Lanza from Staten Island, Dennis Gallagher

          9  from Queens, Maria del Carmen Arroyo from the Bronx,

         10  and Jim Gennaro from Queens, and also the

         11  crackerjack staff of the Committee, Carmen Cognetta,

         12  who is the Counsel, Dan Avery, who is on loan from

         13  the Environmental Protection Committee. We

         14  appreciate that, Mr. Chairman. And Veronica McNeal

         15  from the Finance Department.

         16                 Okay, of course, we excuse Council

         17  Member Robert Jackson, who is up in Albany at the

         18  Court of Appeals arguing the very important case of

         19  the Campaign for Fiscal Equity. We thank him for his

         20  leadership on that.

         21                 Today's hearing concerns two bills.

         22  First, proposed Intro. 431-A, represents the first

         23  action taken by the Council in conjunction with the

         24  Administration to implement terms and conditions of

         25  the recently approved Solid Waste Management Plan.
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          2                 Intro. 431-A amends section 16-308 of

          3  the Administrative Code by adding two new

          4  subdivisions, that, one, will increase the amount of

          5  yard waste that was composed, rather than sent to

          6  landfill; and, two, will mandate the use of

          7  paperbags as containers for yard waste rather than

          8  plastic bags that serve as a hinderance to proper

          9  composting.

         10                 A hearing on this bill was first held

         11  on September 28th, 2006, and those testifying

         12  express unanimous support for the bill but made

         13  suggestions for changes. Some minor changes have

         14  been made in the bill, including extending the date

         15  that the portion of the law that applies to lawn

         16  service companies takes effect on October 2008, to

         17  give the businesses time to comply with the new law

         18  and revise a new penalty schedule. We hope to vote

         19  the bill out of Committee today. And let me just

         20  clarify, as we move people to the paperbags for lawn

         21  waste and leaves, it, of course, is still

         22  recommended and possible to use rigid containers as

         23  was recommended by Commissioner Doherty, and we call

         24  that the Council Member Lanza exception brown paper

         25  bag rule.
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          2                 The second bill that we will look at

          3  today is Intro. 105-A. It is on our calendar for the

          4  first time.

          5                 This bill would regulate the

          6  placement and maintenance of large bins placed in

          7  public areas for the collection of used clothing.

          8                 Various Council members have received

          9  many complaints about these bins that have been

         10  placed in their communities. Many complaints involve

         11  the maintenance of the bins, which once placed

         12  quickly become covered with graffiti and also

         13  depositories for all sorts of discarded material

         14  left outside the bins.

         15                 Other complaints involve the

         16  placement of these bins on private property, without

         17  the permission of the owner of the property and on

         18  public sidewalks and roadways obviously without the

         19  permission of the City of New York.

         20                 Proposed Intro. 105-A prohibits the

         21  placement of collection bins on public property and

         22  on private property, unless the written permission

         23  of the owner of the property is obtained. It also

         24  provides strict mandates for the size of the bins,

         25  clearing of trash left at the bins and for removal
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          2  of graffiti.

          3                 The law also mandates that all bins

          4  be insured and have the name, address, phone number

          5  and if the company providing the bin is a

          6  non-for-profit, or is it a profit organization, and

          7  that must be displayed on the bin.

          8                 All too often people think that

          9  they're donating their clothes or shoes to a

         10  charitable organization, as we're going to learn

         11  today, they are in fact for-profit companies that

         12  resell the material on the open market.

         13                 Today we will hear from the

         14  Administration, companies that provide the clothing

         15  bins and the general public regarding this bill as

         16  well.

         17                 So, first what we'll do is we will

         18  talk about 431-A, which is the composting

         19  enhancement bill, and to speak on that is Peter

         20  McKeon, Chief of Collection Operation from the

         21  Department of Sanitation. After his presentation, we

         22  will answer any questions from the members and then

         23  take a vote and then we'll move on to the second

         24  portion of the hearing which deals with the clothing

         25  receptacles.
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          2                 So, and of course, Chief McKeon is

          3  joined by Chief of Cleaning Operations, Bernard

          4  Sullivan, who we welcome back again to the Council.

          5                 Chief McKeon, the floor is yours.

          6                 CHIEF McKEON: Good afternoon,

          7  Chairman McMahon, and members of the Committee on

          8  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management.

          9                 I am Peter McKeon, Chief of

         10  Collection Operations for the New York City

         11  Department of Sanitation. I welcome the opportunity

         12  to appear before you this afternoon on behalf of

         13  Commissioner John J. Doherty to speak in support of

         14  Intro. 431-A, which is under consideration today.

         15                 Following the Committee's September

         16  hearing on Intro 431 at which the Department first

         17  testified, both Department and Council staff worked

         18  together to develop mutually agreed legislation

         19  regarding the composting of yard waste. As a result

         20  of these negotiations, Intro. 431 has been amended

         21  to our residents to place yard waste out for

         22  Department collection in paperbags or loose and

         23  rigid containers.

         24                 The amended statute also requires

         25  that as of October 2008, landscape and gardeners
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          2  collect and dispose of yard waste at a permitted

          3  compost facility, provided after a sufficient

          4  compost capacity in the City or at a facility within

          5  ten miles from the borough in which the yard waste

          6  is generated.

          7                 If composting facilities with

          8  sufficient capacity do not exist, the yard waste may

          9  be disposed at any appropriately permitted solid

         10  waste management facility.

         11                 I thank you for your action on this

         12  bill and urge a favorable vote today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you,

         14  Chief.

         15                 Any questions from the members?

         16                 I just want to underscore the last

         17  portion of the testimony where what came out of the

         18  hearing was that in the future capacity is always an

         19  issue and the Department is undertaking a survey to

         20  locate that capacity.

         21                 We don't want to impose a mandate

         22  that's not workable, but we think there will be an

         23  increase.

         24                 In the passage of this law, we also

         25  think that it will be, for many companies it will be
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          2  a good business to go into, to set up facilities

          3  like this.

          4                 By removing the plastic bags from the

          5  stream of composting material, we save a lot of

          6  money because the Department then doesn't have to

          7  manually remove them, because they can't go into the

          8  composting facility, and one of the problems you

          9  have with siting these facilities quite often is the

         10  smell, and that smell is created because the plastic

         11  bags cause anaerobic digestion. Did I get that

         12  right? Anaerobic digestion which causes the smell.

         13  By having the brown paper bags you'll greatly reduce

         14  -- you'll save money because they compost with the

         15  material and the facilities themselves will be much

         16  less obnoxious.

         17                 So, having said that, if there are no

         18  other questions, I'll ask the clerk to call the

         19  roll. The Chair recommends a yes vote.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Proposed Introduction

         21  431-A.

         22                 Council Member McMahon.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  I ask to speak on my vote?

          3                 I just want to thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman, for your leadership on this and for all

          5  the great solid waste work that you and we as a

          6  Committee do.

          7                 First of all, I vote yes on the bill,

          8  and I would like to have my name added as a sponsor.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman. And I will be voting aye and also

         12  would like my name to be placed on.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So moved.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lanza.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         21  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         22  abstentions, the item is adopted. Members, please

         23  sign the Committee report. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, thank you.

         25                 And now we move to Chief Sullivan,
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          2  and he will speak to us about Intro. 105-A.

          3                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Good afternoon,

          4  Chairman McMahon, and members of the Committee on

          5  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management. I am Bernard

          6  Sullivan, Chief of Cleaning Operations for the New

          7  York City Department of Sanitation.

          8                 Joining me this afternoon is Peter

          9  McKeon, Chief of Collections Operations for the

         10  Department.

         11                 I am here to testify on Intro. 105-A,

         12  governing the regulation of publicly accessible

         13  collection bins, which is under consideration today.

         14                 Intro. 105-A defines a publicly

         15  accessible collection bin as any container other

         16  than a container placed by any government or

         17  governmental agency that allows for members of the

         18  public to deposit items into such container for the

         19  purpose of collection by the provider of the

         20  container.

         21                 Such bins would be prohibited from

         22  being placed on any City property, property

         23  maintained by the City or any public sidewalk or

         24  roadway.

         25                 Placement of collection bins would be
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          2  allowed on private property, provided that written

          3  permission of the owner of such property is given to

          4  the provider of the bin and such provider complies

          5  with various requirements relating to size,

          6  identification, insurance and maintenance.

          7                 While the Department supports the

          8  concept of prohibiting the placement of publicly

          9  accessible collection bins on City property,

         10  property maintained by the City or on any public

         11  sidewalk roadway, there are several problems having

         12  to do with the overall enforcement of Intro. 105-A

         13  that needs to be addressed.

         14                 First, it is unclear whether the

         15  definition of publicly accessible collection bins

         16  contained in Intro. 105-A would include refuse for

         17  recycling collection bins placed out by Business

         18  Improvement Districts or a City authorized private

         19  entity.

         20                 While the Department believes that

         21  such inclusion is not the intent of the City

         22  Council, the definition as it is currently drafted

         23  needs clarification.

         24                 Secondly, Intro. 105-A is silent as

         25  to which City agency or agencies would be
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          2  responsible for enforcement of this law.

          3                 Finally, several sections of Intro.

          4  105-A would be difficult to enforce.

          5                 For example, provided that the

          6  collection bins would be required to empty the bin

          7  no less often than once per week, how would an

          8  enforcement agency know if this actually occurred?

          9                 Additionally, there are several

         10  references for a collection of a condition by the

         11  provider of a bin, property owner or business once

         12  they become aware of or are notified of a condition.

         13  Such conditions include materials placed outside the

         14  collection bin, whether the bin contains graffiti or

         15  refuse, or whether the bin has been damaged or

         16  vandalized. Intro. 105-A is silent as to how such

         17  notification would occur, and how the enforcement

         18  agency would know if the provider because aware of

         19  or was notified of one of the conditions outlined

         20  above.

         21                 The way the law is currently drafted,

         22  it would be necessary for the enforcing agency to

         23  know exactly when the provider of the bin, property

         24  owner or business property becomes aware of or is

         25  notified of one of the conditions outlined above, in
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          2  order to ensure that the prescribed time periods for

          3  compliance as set forth in the law are met.

          4                 The Department would like to make it

          5  clear that it has no problem being responsible for

          6  the removal and disposal of any publicly accessible

          7  collection bins from City property, or property

          8  maintained by the City or on any public sidewalk or

          9  roadway as long as such permission remains in Intro.

         10  105-A.

         11                 However, the Department has

         12  reservations, as outlined above, for being one of

         13  the agencies chosen to enforce the provisions of

         14  Intro. 105-A.

         15                 The Department recognizes that

         16  publicly accessible collection bins have become an

         17  increasing problem in the City. Together with the

         18  Administration, the Department commits to work with

         19  this Committee to draft language that balances the

         20  concerns of the Council with the concerns and

         21  available resources of the City.

         22                 I would now be happy to answer your

         23  questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you,

         25  Chief. And certainly I believe that the reservations

                                                            15

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  that you raise can be worked out in language that

          3  would clear up the concerns that you have. And we're

          4  going to see some slides in a minute, and I have

          5  some pictures of those just to show, and I've showed

          6  these to the members. And clearly, you can see, I

          7  mean here we are underneath an elevated train or

          8  what's clearly public property and these bins are

          9  just dropped there. And here, too, is a bin filled

         10  with stickers and graffiti and who knows what also

         11  on a public sidewalk. I mean, right on the edge of

         12  the sidewalk in the road. So, clearly, in cases of

         13  City property, I mean just so we're unequivocally

         14  clear here, that the Administration supports the

         15  effort to get rid of the bins on public property for

         16  the reasons you've stated?

         17                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And it's just a

         19  question of making sure that we have language that's

         20  crafted technically that you feel you can enforce it

         21  and that is in fact enforceable?

         22                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: And who would enforce

         23  it? Would it just be this agency or would it be

         24  others?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, what's
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          2  your recommendation? I mean, certainly for public

          3  property --

          4                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: On sidewalks DOT

          5  generally enforces like the newspaper bins and other

          6  items like that that are placed out on sidewalks.

          7  Should they be involved in the enforcement end of

          8  it?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: The reason that

         10  I certainly think it should be sanitation is that

         11  you may be the agency that has the equipment to do

         12  it.

         13                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Well, we certainly

         14  can do the removal, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And then you

         16  would also have the means. I mean, if you take one

         17  of these bins, it's obviously good recyclable metal

         18  and steel, right? I mean, seriously the Department

         19  of Sanitation would be the ones, the equipment to

         20  get it off of the road and the places to dispose it.

         21  You could just throw it with metal recycling, I

         22  would think.

         23                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: To dispose of it

         24  properly, yes. We would be able to handle that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, can you
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          2  imagine a scheme where any City agency could just

          3  notify Sanitation? I mean, even DOT could notify.

          4  They are the ones who could, you know, see that it's

          5  placed on City property and then send to you the

          6  notice or e-mail or whatever it is to remove it.

          7                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Would that work,

          9  in your opinion?

         10                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Yes, it would work.

         11                 I mean, on public property, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Right. Does

         13  Sanitation have the ability to go on to private

         14  property and remove these, even if they were placed

         15  illegally?

         16                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: In your opinion?

         18                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Not in my opinion,

         19  no.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Has the

         21  Department received complaints about these bins?

         22                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Our Borough

         23  Commanders have received some complaints. In the

         24  more recent months prior to April I wasn't aware of

         25  any, but since the spring season we have received a
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          2  few. And basically our field offices have been

          3  proactive and tried to contact the company when

          4  there was ownership that can be identified on the

          5  container, and just let the company know that we

          6  feel it's becoming a negative impact on the

          7  community. But prior to the last six months, we

          8  haven't had any complaints that I'm aware of

          9  regarding this.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Have you

         11  personally observed in the last six months, as we

         12  have certainly on Staten Island, and then we've gone

         13  around to the rest of the City and look, have you

         14  noticed a real increase in the number of these bins?

         15                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: More recently, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And when your

         17  Department contacted the owners of these bins, what

         18  did they say?

         19                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: For the most part

         20  they've been responsive.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But didn't

         22  anybody say to them, hey, you put these on City

         23  property, what are you crazy?

         24                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Well, we felt that

         25  was a DOT issue, because it was on the sidewalks and
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          2  DOT has generally regulated what's been allowed to

          3  be put on a sidewalk. So, we were just trying to

          4  address the issue of its appearance and how it could

          5  impact street cleanliness.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But do you have

          7  any opinion as to how any of these companies could

          8  think that it's acceptable or legal or drop them on

          9  City sidewalks?

         10                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: No, I can't imagine

         11  why they would think they can --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I mean, this is

         13  my favorite picture here, not only because the

         14  person standing next to it is almost as large as the

         15  bin, but this particular bin, this is City sidewalk,

         16  the road is right here and then this is parkland.

         17  So, it's either City sidewalk or parkland. It's not

         18  like it's ambiguous and somebody could think, well,

         19  I'm really on private property.

         20                 I mean, this is sitting either on DOT

         21  property or New York City Parks Department.

         22                 How could a company, do you have any

         23  opinion how any company could think this is

         24  acceptable?

         25                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: I mean, no. I mean,
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          2  they've never contacted us. We have never been

          3  contacted, is this allowed or permissible? They just

          4  appear where our officers notice them in the street,

          5  and when they become a negative we will make the

          6  effort to contact the company and tell them to clean

          7  it up.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, when you say

          9  a negative, you mean from a sanitation perspective,

         10  whether it becomes an eyesore or there's litter

         11  associated with it outside.

         12                 But you mean, in terms of it just

         13  blocking the sidewalk, that's not within the purview

         14  of the Department of sanitation. That was Department

         15  of Transportation's jurisdiction?

         16                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Well, that's the way

         17  we saw it up until this point.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         19                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: I mean, we didn't

         20  know if they were given permission by DOT, so we

         21  have told community board leaders that they should

         22  contact DOT, if they believe they shouldn't be

         23  there. But in order to be somewhat proactive, we

         24  have also contacted the company and asked them to

         25  maintain it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And sometimes we

          3  try to contact the companies, we can't get them.

          4  There are numbers that aren't answered or answering

          5  machines. Do you know if you've been successful in

          6  contacting the companies?

          7                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: In some instances we

          8  have, and there have been some that we have not had

          9  any luck contacting them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And have you

         11  removed any of the bins from public roadways or

         12  sidewalks?

         13                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You haven't?

         15                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But you could?

         17  You have the jurisdiction to do that?

         18                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: I don't know that we

         19  do legally on the sidewalk. That's why we haven't

         20  touched any of them. We've been asked by some

         21  community boards to remove them, and we have not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, certainly if

         23  this legislation gave you the power to do that, that

         24  would be helpful?

         25                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And from a

          3  public policy perspective, you'll agree with me that

          4  there is no place for these things on New York

          5  City's public property?

          6                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: I agree.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And certainly

          8  it's your experience if these bins sit out there,

          9  after awhile they become public eyesores in terms of

         10  stickers and graffiti and litter? You've seen that

         11  happen as well, right?

         12                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: The ones that I've

         13  seen, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Regarding

         15  private property, Chief, would it be advisable, do

         16  you think if they were placed on public property

         17  without permission, that they could call Sanitation,

         18  the owner could remove them?

         19                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Public property?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Public. No, no.

         21  Talking about private property.

         22                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: We have a lot of

         24  owners of private property who come out in the

         25  morning and low and behold another one of these
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          2  containers or two or three have sprouted up on their

          3  property without their permission. Could you imagine

          4  a legislative scheme where in that case the owner of

          5  the property could ask Sanitation to remove it for

          6  them?

          7                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: It would be something

          8  I don't think we would want to, just because of the

          9  legalities, safety issues, are we going on their

         10  property, are there other people there, other items.

         11                 I don't know that right now. I mean,

         12  I would have to see how the law was written, if it

         13  was going to be written in that way. But right now I

         14  would have my own reservations about us getting

         15  involved with the removal on private property.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But what could

         17  you recommend to us, because we've gotten, in fact

         18  we have a letter to read into the record from a

         19  property manager on Staten Island, who gets these

         20  things dropped on the property that she manages and

         21  her boss owns and they try to call the company to

         22  remove them and they never come, and then they have

         23  to pay a private carting company to come and remove

         24  them. What do you recommend, what relief do we

         25  provide those people?
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          2                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: I don't know if I can

          3  give an answer. I mean, it can be any number of

          4  things that can be dropped in their parking lot that

          5  they would be responsible for removing. I mean, they

          6  would have to be responsible for managing this item

          7  being placed there by securing their own property.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Could that be

          9  classified as illegal dumping?

         10                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: I don't see how it

         11  could be.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I mean, if

         13  somebody comes and dumps trash or waste on my

         14  private property, you can give them summonses for

         15  illegal dumping, can't you? Or is it only if they do

         16  it on public property?

         17                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Public property.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Only public?

         19                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Public?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Can you do

         21  private as well?

         22                 Hold on. We want to consult with

         23  Counsel.

         24                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Yes, we do on private

         25  property, if we catch them in the act. If we catch
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          2  the vehicle dumping on private property, if we

          3  witness them in the act, we can issue that summons.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But if somebody

          5  dumped garbage on my property and they left a note,

          6  I dumped this on your property, Joe Smith, and this

          7  is my address, couldn't that person be --

          8                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: I believe right now

          9  the law is that we would have to witness it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Oh, okay. So we

         11  have to look at that as well.

         12                 To me it's the same concept, because

         13  you gave me the idea. It's unwanted, it's

         14  unrequested, somebody drops something on my

         15  property, whether it's a car, an abandoned car, one

         16  of these dumpsters or normal trash, that's all

         17  illegal dumping in my mind. Okay.

         18                 Well, you've talked about complaints,

         19  have any businesses contacted the Department to

         20  request removal, or to say that they've been

         21  bothered by these dumpsters?

         22                 CHIEF SULLIVAN: Not that I'm aware

         23  of.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, thanks,

         25  Chief.
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          2                 Any questions from my colleagues?

          3                 Okay, thank you very much and thank

          4  you for coming.

          5                 The next witness is going to show us

          6  a lot of these slides of where this exists

          7  throughout the City. So, if you have the time, we'd

          8  appreciate it if you could stay. Thank you.

          9                 Okay, next Mr. Kevin Hunt from my

         10  District Office is going to come up and show the

         11  Committee some examples of these conditions. If

         12  there is anyone who wishes to testify, if they could

         13  please sign in with the Sergeant-of-Arms Jerry in

         14  the back of the room.

         15                 Mr. Cognetta, you are summoned.

         16                 Okay, Mr. Hunt, please state your

         17  name and affiliation for the record. What are you

         18  showing us?

         19                 MR. HUNT: Several slides that were

         20  taken in the Borough of New York of clothing bins.

         21  Most of them are on Staten Island. We have a few in

         22  Brooklyn and one in Queens.

         23                 The first slide was taken on Nicholas

         24  Avenue on the underpass of the northshore railroad.

         25  You can see how it's a little graffiti. There have
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          2  been times, I've been out there a couple of times

          3  and there have been times when not only was there

          4  graffiti but there was trash piled up alongside the

          5  bin.

          6                 The second slide, this is at Fourth

          7  Avenue and 17th Street in Brooklyn. This is the next

          8  block up at Fourth Avenue and 18th Street in

          9  Brooklyn.

         10                 Again, at Fourth Avenue and 26th

         11  Street in Brooklyn you can see how the posters have

         12  been plastered all over. This was right on the

         13  sidewalk alongside a gas station.

         14                 That's the same bin from a different

         15  angle.

         16                 Although it's a little shadowed

         17  there, this is at Fourth Avenue under the Prospect

         18  Parkway Expressway, which is, it's a City sidewalk.

         19                 This is one of my favorites. This is

         20  a traffic island underneath the L and at 60th Street

         21  and Uttrecht Avenue in Brooklyn, and two of them

         22  were sitting right in the middle of a traffic

         23  island.

         24                 This is on Staten Island. It's on

         25  Richmond Terrace and what I call the promenade. It's
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          2  overlooking the lower bay by the Staten Island

          3  Ferry.

          4                 This one was taken on, I believe this

          5  was on Morrow Street and Forest Avenue by Lowes,

          6  again, on Staten Island, and it was on a vacant--

          7  well, actually it was on like the roadway.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: In the street

          9  bed.

         10                 MR. HUNT: In the street bed.

         11                 This one was on a sidewalk in front

         12  of a store on Seibert Avenue and Castleton Avenue. I

         13  would say it was about three feet from the bin to

         14  the curb, and there was not much room to pass by on

         15  the street.

         16                 And this was on Staten Island on

         17  Newark Avenue, and it's under the Bayonne Bridge.

         18  That red sign to the left, if you can see it, says

         19  "No Trespassing." And this is what was on that

         20  particular bin on Newark Avenue, and it says the

         21  container has authorization to be here but I don't

         22  think the Port Authority had granted that

         23  authorization.

         24                 And this was taken on Hillside Avenue

         25  and 218th Street in Queens. And that's the slide
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          2  show.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: All right. And

          4  let me just apologize to my colleague from the

          5  Bronx, that the staff did not get out to the Bronx.

          6  I'm sure that they are there. I've certainly seen

          7  some up by Yankee Stadium. And we will not make that

          8  mistake, that will be covered again next time. They

          9  ran out of gas money.

         10                 Thank you, Mr. Hunt.

         11                 Okay, we have representatives from

         12  the industry. Mr. Marc Field is from H&M Leasing,

         13  Stephen Silverberg. Is that A&M Leasing or H&M? Both

         14  of them H&M, okay.

         15                 Rodney Carter from Planet Aid, and

         16  Thomas Gregersen from USA Gain. Okay, and as they

         17  come up and settle, Mr. Hunt, can you remove that

         18  computer off that table? Just move it over to the

         19  other table so it's not in their way. And as you

         20  gentlemen get settled, I will ask Counsel to read a

         21  letter of testimony that we received from one of my

         22  constituents.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: This is from,

         24  Asset Manager of RiverQuest Realty Associates on

         25  Staten Island that owns a number of shopping
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          2  centers.

          3                 "The Hewlett House placed a clothing

          4  bin on the Tottenville Square Shopping Center

          5  Parking Lot located at 7001 Amboy Road without

          6  permission on or about June 1st, 2006.

          7                 After numerous attempts by my

          8  assistant Jillian Nicosi, the Hewlett House agreed

          9  to remove the bin on June 9th to no avail.

         10                 We then received an enclosed package

         11  which was followed up with numerous calls from them

         12  trying to persuade us to execute agreements to keep

         13  the bin in place.

         14                 It was only after I interceded and

         15  spoke with Mr. Simonton that the bin was removed on

         16  June 13th, 2006.

         17                 As we have discussed in the past, the

         18  bill prohibiting these bins being placed on private

         19  property without permission would be most helpful to

         20  the business community. It is labor intensive to try

         21  and contact them and even more difficult to have

         22  them removed from the premises, not to mention the

         23  mess they create.

         24                 The removal of the Hewlett House

         25  clothing bin was done relatively quickly in
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          2  comparison to others that have been illegally

          3  placed. I recently had Planet Aid place their bins

          4  on both the Tottenville Square Shopping Center and

          5  Coral Island Shopping Center. It took several weeks

          6  for them to be removed. Prior to that the most

          7  difficult was PAL. I'm not sure if they're an

          8  affiliate with the Police Athletic League, but it

          9  took months before we succeeded in its removal.

         10                 I know the Staten Island business

         11  community would be most grateful for any assistance

         12  you can provide.

         13                 Helen Vitaliano, Asset Manager."

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, why don't

         15  we start, we'll start from our left, and if you

         16  would just introduce yourself, and pull the

         17  microphone closer to you and then your affiliation

         18  and then we'll testify and then I'll ask you all to

         19  speak and then we'll ask questions of everyone

         20  individually or together. And thank you for coming

         21  today.

         22                 MR. GREGERSEN: Okay, thank you for

         23  the invitation for coming here to this hearing. My

         24  name is Thomas Gregersen, and I'm the Manager for

         25  the company U'SAGAIN who collects used clothing in
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          2  New York City, like the red and white bins, yes? And

          3  we have been in operation three years. And I have

          4  written something to the Board, and I want to read

          5  it for you, because Carmen also told me that they

          6  were interested in having some information about

          7  what this business is about.

          8                 So, I have made four chapters. One is

          9  about the clothes collection business. Point two,

         10  clothes and shoes as a part of the waste in New York

         11  City. Three, how the City can facilitate the clothes

         12  collection, and then I have some comments to the

         13  proposed regulations.

         14                 Point number four, the clothes

         15  collection business.

         16                 Secondhand clothes and shoes is

         17  traded all over the globe, from the nations in the

         18  north, which have a big surplus, from the nations in

         19  the south are a big part of the populations can only

         20  afford to buy used clothing. Every American consumes

         21  at least 40 pounds of clothes each year, through

         22  shoes, textiles and other things. That means that

         23  the consumption in New York City is at least 150,000

         24  tons of clothes for shoes and other things per year.

         25                 Most of these clothes can be

                                                            33

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  collected and reused each year, if there is an easy

          3  system people can use in their everyday life.

          4                 There are many companies and

          5  charities which collect a lot of used clothing. A

          6  small part is sold to customers in the United States

          7  to stores, most of it end up in Mexico and South and

          8  Central America.

          9                 I will take our company as a typical

         10  example how it functions. Last year we collected

         11  1,800 tons in the City from over 300 collection

         12  bins. The boxes are placed beside businesses with

         13  their permission. Sometimes we pay them a fee for

         14  having the box. Many of them are on sidewalks up to

         15  the wall of the building, many times beside ice

         16  boxes or other things standing outside.

         17                 The collection bins are emptied one

         18  to three times a week, depending how much they

         19  give.  The clothes are brought to our warehouse in

         20  South Bronx where they are baled, the bags are not

         21  opened. We only take away garbage and the breakable

         22  items. The clothes are baled in order to save on the

         23  freight costs.

         24                 Each bale weigh about 1,100 pounds.

         25  We export these clothes to main customers, one in
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          2  Texas, which sells to the Mexicans, and one in Chile

          3  where 70 percent goes into Bolivia and 30 percent is

          4  sold in Chile. The sales price varies between 50 and

          5  25 cents a pound, depending on the market situation.

          6  Of what we collect, we throw about five percent as

          7  garbage.

          8                 Our operation employs about 12

          9  full-time workers. Some are employees, some are

         10  contractors.

         11                 Point two, clothes and shoes as a

         12  part of the waste in New York City.

         13                 First we'll look at the results from

         14  the New York City Department of Sanitation Summer

         15  2005 Waste Study.

         16                 Here is the percentage of the

         17  wastestream. Non-clothing textiles was at 1.73

         18  percent; clothing textile, 2.59 percent; shoes, 0.62

         19  percent, and other leather products, 0.06 percent.

         20  In total five percent. The total residents garbage

         21  in New York City in a year is about 4.4 million

         22  tons, or about 12,000 tons a day.

         23                 You must correct me if this is wrong

         24  or right, but I think it's in this figure we're

         25  talking about.
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          2                 The clothes I'm sure part is about

          3  600 tons a day for about 200,000 tons a year, if you

          4  use this calculation. I don't know how much of this

          5  can be used but I guess at least 50 percent should

          6  be possible to reuse. This should give an

          7  opportunity to remove 100,000 tons from the waste

          8  stream every year, if the collection system can be

          9  built to a better standard, more boxes, better

         10  service. This could give a revenue of about $50

         11  million a year and create over 500 full-time jobs.

         12                 Point three, how the City can

         13  facilitate the clothes collection. There is no doubt

         14  that the best system for collecting used clothing is

         15  the collection bins. It is the most convenient

         16  system for the givers and the most cost-effective

         17  system for the collectors.

         18                 It's bin can probably serve between

         19  1,500 to 2,000 people, and the full-scale system

         20  should have at least 4,000 boxes. Two-thousand of

         21  these could be placed beside 1,000 schools, the rest

         22  in other locations.

         23                 The City could or should make a

         24  program through all public schools, where the school

         25  holds collection bins and get a part of their
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          2  revenue.

          3                 This monies could either go to its

          4  school or to a common box. This system could

          5  probably collect between 30 to 50,000 tons a year.

          6                 Then I go to the comments, to the

          7  proposed regulations. I only follow what I got in

          8  the letter from you, first regarding the size of the

          9  collection bin.

         10                 The proposal was that there only

         11  should be six feet high. Most of our bins are about

         12  six to seven feet high, then that is okay, like

         13  five, six feet. Many times we place small bins in a

         14  row in a good location, between two and five boxes.

         15                 To display information about the

         16  collector, I agree in that. We need probably to make

         17  some new signs for all boxes, and it would be good

         18  if we got some months period to do that.

         19                 Emptying of the bin. Yes, we empty

         20  the bins at least once a week. Many times we need to

         21  go two to three times a week to some locations.

         22                 And we have a general liability

         23  insurance for the boxes. Maintenance of the bins. I

         24  agree that, as we saw on the picture, many of these

         25  bins are not very good maintained and that has to be
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          2  improved. But I don't agree about this rule about 72

          3  hours, you know, because that's kind of difficult to

          4  follow.

          5                 For example, if you look at the

          6  owners of the newsstands, they have three-month

          7  period before to fix this problem. And there is no

          8  doubt the graffiti is a problem, but the bins are

          9  only a small part of a bigger problem.

         10                 About placement of the bins that we

         11  follow at this time, placement of bins on City

         12  property, sidewalks, et cetera. We have many bins on

         13  sidewalks. They're usually placed beside ice boxes,

         14  garbage cans and other things beside a business, and

         15  we seek landlord's consent. The rule should be that

         16  they not obstruct the pedestrians and at least eight

         17  feet of walking space.

         18                 And the point eight, no advertising

         19  on the bins. That's okay. And nine, permission for

         20  placement of bins on private property, we get

         21  permission from the landlord or the City. Many times

         22  we deal directly with the lessees, so they also can

         23  help us looking after the bins, keeping the area

         24  clean for trash and calling us if there is a

         25  problem. Many times the landlord is far away or a
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          2  big company which cannot help us with this service.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you. Next.

          4  Oh, we've been joined by Council Member David

          5  Yassky, our colleague from Brooklyn. I would ask the

          6  clerk to complete the roll call on the vote on the

          7  Intro. 431-A.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Yassky.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote currently

         11  stands at seven in the affirmative. Thank you.

         12                 MR. SILVERBERG: If I may, Mr.

         13  Chairman? I'm Steven Silverberg. I'm the attorney

         14  for H&M Leasing. We've submitted some materials to

         15  you. Included in that is a copy of a letter from me.

         16  I'm going to address some technical issues regarding

         17  the law, or the proposed law, and Marc Field, who is

         18  the Vice President of H&M is here, who can discuss

         19  with you his operations and some other issues that

         20  you may have.

         21                 If I can just run through my letter

         22  quickly with you. First, there appears to be a typo

         23  in Section 1. It refers to a new Section 10-162, but

         24  then the regulation is labeled 10-163. Section

         25  10-163(B)(7) of the proposal addresses no publicly
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          2  accessible collection bin may be placed on any City

          3  property or property contained by the City or any

          4  public sidewalk or roadway without written

          5  authorization to do so.

          6                 We believe it would avoid confusion

          7  and potential arbitrary determinations if the law

          8  spelled out a procedure for actually obtaining

          9  written permission to place bins in certain areas

         10  where it may be appropriate.

         11                 The regulations should include a

         12  requirement for appropriate insurance and an

         13  appropriate step to ensure that any bins placed on

         14  City property are maintained in a safe and sanitary

         15  manner.

         16                 Permitting the bins on public

         17  property under controlled circumstance could

         18  actually provide a benefit to the City. It could

         19  potentially require a source of funding by requiring

         20  payment of fees for permits to place bins in these

         21  locations. By removing clothing from the waste

         22  stream, the City will save the cost of collecting

         23  this additional solid waste and eliminate it from

         24  landfills.

         25                 In addition, H&M has for other
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          2  municipalities provided tonnage calculations which

          3  they understand has been used to assist those

          4  communities in obtaining additional federal funding

          5  as a result of removing this tonnage from the waste

          6  stream.

          7                 Section 10-163(B)(9) raises no

          8  publicly accessible collection bin shall be placed

          9  on any private property without written permission

         10  of the owner of the property. This section presents

         11  a potential problem for the owners of the bins. Many

         12  of the locations of these bins are in parking lots

         13  of stores that tend to be large chains, such as

         14  supermarkets. Our client and many of the others who

         15  have similar businesses obtain permission from the

         16  individual store managers to maintain bins on these

         17  locations.

         18                 Once there is a requirement for a

         19  written agreement, the store manager is forced to

         20  submit the proposal to corporate counsel or

         21  corporate headquarters for review. There is no

         22  incentive for the store manager to spend time going

         23  back and forth with corporate counsel over the

         24  wording of an agreement, as most of the bins are

         25  allowed at these locations without a fee, because in
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          2  the case of my client they're operated by an

          3  organization that does fundraising for charities and

          4  they are registered with the New York State

          5  Charities Bureau.

          6                 Thus, placing the bins requires more

          7  than a verbal approval and the understanding that

          8  the area around the bin will be maintained properly,

          9  the store manager would rather not be bothered, as a

         10  practical matter requiring the written permission

         11  from each location will effectively preclude my

         12  client and others who raise funds for charities from

         13  many locations. And we suggest that the word

         14  "written" be deleted from the provision.

         15                 If a bin is placed at a location

         16  without permission of the owner or manager of the

         17  location, it will have to be removed.

         18                 Section 163(C)(4) reads, "In the

         19  event that a publicly accessible collection bin is

         20  placed on City property without permission of the

         21  City, then the Commissioner of the Department of

         22  Sanitation shall arrange to remove and dispose of

         23  the publicly accessible collection bin."

         24                 This section again highlights the

         25  need for a procedure for obtaining permission so
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          2  that the records of whether or not permission has

          3  been obtained are clear. Further, as these bins are

          4  actually quite costly, there should also be a

          5  procedure for notifying the owner of the bin to

          6  remove it within a fixed time period.

          7                 This will allow a modicum of due

          8  process in the event the bin is actually there with

          9  permission and will potentially save this City the

         10  cost of removing the bin if it is not there with

         11  permission.

         12                 Finally, I believe the word "than" in

         13  the section should be then.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. FIELD: Ladies and gentlemen, my

         16  name is Marc Field. I really have no prepared

         17  statement. I would like to speak a little bit from

         18  my heart about this.

         19                 My sister and I grew up in this

         20  business and we realized the down side of the

         21  business, as well as the up side. We choose to

         22  represent charities which we feel are noteworthy and

         23  are doing the proper thing. Our pet charity right

         24  now is One In Nine. It's a Long Island Action

         25  Coalition for Breast Cancer. They were given a house
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          2  that was owned by Captain Hewlett, in Hewlett, Long

          3  Island, which was in total disarray, and Kate

          4  Murray, who is the supervisor of the Hempstead gave

          5  them permission to use it, but they had no funds to

          6  run it. They approached my organization and inquired

          7  what we could do to help them along.

          8                 By the use of the Hewlett House name,

          9  I am proud to say that we've received several

         10  accolades of actually paying the rent over there,

         11  we've enabled them to handle six, to seven-thousand

         12  patients a year, in which they give wigs to women

         13  that are undergoing chemotherapy, they have family

         14  counseling, they have individual counseling. If a

         15  woman or man goes to them and cannot afford a

         16  doctor, they have doctors that will work pro bono.

         17  These are six women that are cancer survivors, they

         18  do a great job and we are bent-over-backwards to

         19  help them.

         20                 Having said that, I would like to

         21  address I think what the reason is that we're here

         22  for today, and mainly it's the eyesore and the

         23  sanitation of these bins that are placed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Let me just stop

         25  you because I'm unclear as to one thing.
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          2                 Your company is totally

          3  non-for-profit and all of the money that you make

          4  goes to Hewlett House?

          5                 MR. FIELD: No, sir. No company can

          6  operate that. We are registered fundraisers. In

          7  other words, we are hired to raise funds for

          8  charity. We harvest the product. We sell the

          9  product. Hewlett House, as one that we're referring

         10  to, gets their portion of what it yields. And I must

         11  say this, Mr. Chairman. Years ago this was the kind

         12  of industry where you took in a product and a shirt

         13  was worth something and a blouse was worth

         14  something. It's no longer possible to produce

         15  merchandise that way in New York.

         16                 First of all, our labor rate throws

         17  it way out of whack.

         18                 So, what we find ourselves doing is,

         19  as it comes in intact, it's compressed, just as

         20  Thomas stated, and immediately goes overseas.

         21                 We work on pennies a pound.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I understand.

         23  Just so we're clear, so is your company a for-profit

         24  company that donates some of its revenue to

         25  charities?

                                                            45

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 MR. FIELD: Yes, sir. We are a

          3  for-profit company that are contractually in

          4  partnership with charities.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So, what

          6  percentage is for profit? Is it a corporation?

          7                 MR. FIELD: Yes, it is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: With

          9  shareholders?

         10                 MR. FIELD: And by the way, these are

         11  public figures that are open.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. Just so we

         13  have a sense. So, it's a company. What percentage of

         14  your annual profit goes to the shareholders and for

         15  the profit investment of the business, which is

         16  fine, which is the American way, and what percentage

         17  goes to charity?

         18                 MR. FIELD: The rule of thumb that we

         19  attempt to do is that one-third goes to the charity,

         20  one-third goes to the collection of it, and

         21  one-third goes to the company, which is us. So, it's

         22  about a 33 and a third percent representation.

         23                 And by the way, Mr. Chairman, this is

         24  with no out-of-pocket funds on the part of the

         25  charity. They have no involvement. And if you notice
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          2  in the booklet, every box that we have on the street

          3  has $4 million aggregate liability, so that any deal

          4  that we make with a land owner, with a municipality,

          5  because we also do recycling for certain

          6  municipalities in New York State, as well as in New

          7  Jersey, and are proud to say that we represent about

          8  80 percent of the Volunteer Firemen's Associations

          9  in the State of New York, and we're about the only

         10  funding they got.

         11                 But I hope I've answered your

         12  question on that part, because I'd like to go back

         13  to the cleanliness issue.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes, go ahead.

         15  No, you have. You've answered my question. Thank

         16  you. We'll come back to it. I just wanted to make it

         17  to be clear.

         18                 MR. FIELD: Not a problem.

         19                 When we go out to acquire a location,

         20  and they're very precious today. As you can see,

         21  they're a sore point to many, many people, and

         22  rightful so by the way that they're handled. I'm

         23  thankful that we were posed only one issue in all of

         24  these photographs, was that Hewlett House box we had

         25  on St. Nicholas. We build these boxes, okay, and we
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          2  maintain them.

          3                 Our boxes are seen twice a week to

          4  harvest the product, and twice a week by our

          5  maintenance driver who goes out midnight to eight.

          6                 Now, what he does is, he'll clean up

          7  anything that was left during those hours. So, those

          8  boxes are actually seen four times a week, and we go

          9  out of our way to make sure.

         10                 That box on St. Nicholas has been

         11  changed twice, and I'm at the point where if the

         12  kids are going to keep graffiti'ing it, you know, I

         13  admire their artistic ability, but we're going to

         14  pull it. We do not want to be a sore tooth to a

         15  neighborhood.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But you don't

         17  have anybody's permission to put that box there.

         18                 MR. FIELD: When the people from

         19  Hewlett House go out and they look for locations, if

         20  they find a location that's on the street, the DOT

         21  is contacted.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You don't have

         23  permission that is underneath the railway line, you

         24  do not have permission to put that box there. I know

         25  it and you know it. You did not have. There is no
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          2  City agency even empowered to give you permission to

          3  put that box there, and you put it there, and if the

          4  box is painted in a way to make people think that

          5  it's a fully charitable organization, that's not the

          6  case, and you guys come in here and expect us to

          7  thank you for providing this great service to the

          8  City of New York. I didn't mean to interrupt you but

          9  that box is a really sore spot with me. And by the

         10  way, you have many more in my district other than

         11  that particular one, but we just showed the ones

         12  that were much more egregious.

         13                 How many boxes do you have in the

         14  City of New York?

         15                 MR. FIELD: I'm not certain. I know

         16  there's about 18 in Staten Island, I think.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Eighteen in

         18  Staten Island?

         19                 MR. FIELD: I believe so.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And the only box

         21  you put out is the Hewlett House box, the beige one?

         22                 MR. FIELD: Yes, that's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: How many boxes

         24  do you have?

         25                 MR. GREGERSEN: (Not using the
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          2  microphone.)

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And that's

          4  U'SAGAIN. And how many on Staten Island? Fifteen.

          5  And are they throughout all five boroughs? They're

          6  in Manhattan too.

          7                 I interrupted you, sir, and I'm

          8  sorry. Go ahead.

          9                 MR. FIELD: That's all right. That's

         10  all right.

         11                 We do have several contractual

         12  agreements with land owners in Staten Island, as

         13  well as we do in Manhattan. If you look at this.

         14                 You know, I don't want to come across

         15  as a goody-two-shoes. I have a family, and we're all

         16  trying to make a living, but we do take pride in

         17  certain things we do.

         18                 For instance, this piece of property

         19  here is 164th and Kassina Boulevard. It is owned by

         20  a private individual. But the debris was running

         21  into the bus stop. So, I saw the Sanitation

         22  Department clean it up many, many times, okay? We

         23  made a contractual agreement with the owner. We went

         24  in, we tore up all of the debris, we took it out. We

         25  took up the grass. We put down redwood chips, we put
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          2  down slate walks to each box. These things are seen

          3  four times a week. They're kept immaculate. When the

          4  snow hits, we remove the snow. We try to do it the

          5  proper way. We try to be responsible.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: It doesn't look

          7  like that on Nicholas Avenue to me, sir. I'm sorry.

          8  I see that box just about every day, okay? So, this

          9  is a nice picture, but what you've done to my

         10  community and what I'm sure Council Member Arroyo

         11  has got, can look in her community as well. Don't

         12  bring us just the nice ones, because the one in my

         13  community really stinks. It's an eyesore, and we're

         14  not going to permit it to go on.

         15                 MR. FIELD: You have my apology, and

         16  that one will be removed. We don't want eyesores. We

         17  don't want problems. We'd like to do business. We'd

         18  like to take care of our charities, and whatever our

         19  fiduciary responsibilities are.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Sorry. Let

         21  Planet Aid talk and then we'll ask everybody

         22  questions.

         23                 MR. FIELD: Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I interrupted.

         25  I'm sorry.

                                                            51

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 Go ahead, sir.

          3                 MR. CARTER: Thank you. My name is

          4  Rodney Carter. I am the Operations Manager of Planet

          5  Aid, New York City area. Planet Aid is fully a

          6  non-for-profit organization.

          7                 I have submitted some documents as to

          8  such. Within that package you will find not only

          9  information about the organization and the wonderful

         10  work that we are doing, you will find also proof of

         11  insurance, in addition to documentation as to being

         12  a non-profit, in addition to several statements.

         13                 I would like to add, in addition to

         14  what these gentlemen have been speaking on here

         15  today, representing their entities, Thomas of

         16  U'SAGAIN have spoken about the wonderful things that

         17  the clothes do for the needy. The gentlemen to my

         18  right have spoken about the legalities or the legal

         19  aspect of it. I am just going to add simply the

         20  procedure and the obtaining of authorization gained

         21  for placement of these containers.

         22                 We, in fact, do go out and gain

         23  authorization from private property owners to place

         24  our containers. I personally, in regard to public

         25  areas, have been going through many procedures.
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          2                 Let me also add that Planet Aid, I,

          3  myself, have been always willing to work with any

          4  entity or agency representatives from your office,

          5  also Councilman McMahon I've been communicating with

          6  and working with and in regard to placement and/or

          7  removal of these containers, also the Councilman

          8  Oddo's office, as well as representatives from

          9  Sanitation throughout the City. Planet Aid have

         10  taken the initiative to comply with every ordinance

         11  and what have you.

         12                 Let me go a step further to say that

         13  we have implemented also a container maintenance

         14  program which we, ourselves go around and

         15  maintenance our containers.

         16                 Simply put, Planet Aid is willing and

         17  eager to work with this Committee, and any entity or

         18  agency that you may put in place to implement

         19  regulations and so forth.

         20                 You will find within that package

         21  also a brief proposal on how the organization could

         22  work with the City and other agencies to secure

         23  additional sites, if at all possible.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Mr. Carter,
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          2  whose permission did you have to put this box

          3  underneath Prospect Expressway?

          4                 MR. CARTER: That's me here. The El.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: The El Train.

          6                 MR. CARTER: Actually, those

          7  containers, and you're right, as I mentioned, we are

          8  eager to work with this Committee and comply with

          9  every ordinance.

         10                 Actually, those containers --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: What do you

         12  mean? Excuse me. You put out boxes illegally.

         13  There's one in my district, we showed it on the

         14  slides on Forest Avenue in Mariners Harbor, it's

         15  sitting in the road.

         16                 MR. CARTER: That box --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Whose permission

         18  did you have to put that box there?

         19                 MR. CARTER: That box, there was a

         20  business there by the name if Tire Surgence who

         21  recently went out of business. It was there.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: There is no

         23  business there. Between a movie theater and a swamp.

         24                 MR. CARTER: No. No. Actually that was

         25  the fence right there belonging to KeySpan and right
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          2  next door is the Tire Surgence.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: It's in the

          4  road. It's in the road.

          5                 I think everybody in this room will

          6  agree, the roads belong to the City of New York.

          7                 MR. CARTER: Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: They do not

          9  belong to Tire Warehouse or KeySpan or anybody else.

         10  How could you put a box in a road and then come to

         11  this Committee and say you're eager to work with us?

         12                 MR. CARTER: No. I'm not trying to

         13  pull the wool over anyone's eyes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: By training I'm

         15  a lawyer, so are you guys all saying that because I

         16  feel like it, I could put up a kiosk on every street

         17  corner in the City of New York and say I'm a great

         18  guy, I'm providing legal service, and by the way,

         19  some of my revenue I'm going to donate to a charity,

         20  put the kiosk wherever I want to? Every business. I

         21  mean, what happens if every business in the City of

         22  New York felt that they could just go out and

         23  illegally dump dumpsters or containers or kiosks or

         24  whatever on public property, on private property, or

         25  in between? I don't understand how anybody can think
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          2  that you can just, you're providing a public service

          3  in helping us recycle, or charity, or give us these

          4  charity folders, give me this folder, how wonderful

          5  you are, and then over here you've got two illegally

          6  placed boxes causing safety hazard and visual

          7  hazards, and everything else. How could you say that

          8  you're eager to be a good guy when you do this?

          9                 MR. CARTER: Well, actually, to be

         10  honest with you, the community requested that, and

         11  those boxes are --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: The community

         13  requested me to put up my lawyer's kiosk on a

         14  corner, I'm not going to do it if it's against the

         15  law. This is against the law. You placed private

         16  property, your boxes on public property, did you

         17  not?

         18                 MR. CARTER: Yes, we did.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So then you

         20  broke the law, didn't you?

         21                 MR. CARTER: Well, we see that now.

         22  Previous to that we didn't know in full the total

         23  ordinance there.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: How long has

         25  Planet Aid been in business?

                                                            56

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 MR. CARTER: Planet Aid has been in

          3  business here since 1997. I, myself --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And you're just

          5  finding out now? Here. This is the one on Staten

          6  Island. This is in my district. There is Planet Aid

          7  sitting in a road. So, who gave you permission to

          8  put that box in the road in Mariners Harbor? Because

          9  I know the people didn't collect it and the people

         10  are sick and tired of you guys dropping these boxes

         11  where you don't have permission.

         12                 MR. CARTER: Absolutely. That was the

         13  box I was referring to that was supposed to be on

         14  the property of the Tire Surgence.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: When is that

         16  going to be moved?

         17                 MR. CARTER: Immediately.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: When is that

         19  going to be removed?

         20                 MR. CARTER: Immediately.

         21                 MR. SILVERBERG: Councilman, may I say

         22  something?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes.

         24                 MR. SILVERBERG: And I'm not arguing

         25  with you about putting things in the road, but I
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          2  think part of the reason that you have this hearing

          3  and you have this proposed law is because there is

          4  some confusion about what's permitted and what isn't

          5  permitted. And my client tells me that, first of

          6  all, he doesn't put things in the middle of a road,

          7  he puts things in places where he doesn't obstruct

          8  pedestrian traffic.

          9                 And furthermore, he tells me that

         10  someone from his office calls the DOT before they

         11  place this there and they speak to someone at DOT

         12  and say we're going to put this there, is there any

         13  problem?

         14                 Now, obviously, this is a very loose

         15  arrangement. There is no regulation for it. My

         16  client has thought that, you know, based upon that,

         17  he could place these there. That's why we're

         18  suggesting that if, in fact, there is a requirement

         19  that there be permission, that there be a procedure

         20  for permission so we don't have these issues.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: The question

         22  there is just credibility, because I've got a letter

         23  from a manager of property who had he Hewlett Houses

         24  dropped on her property without permission, okay?

         25                 I'll finish, then you can go.
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          2                 It was private property, okay? And it

          3  was dropped there without permission. And this is a

          4  very visible management company. I know the site.

          5  There's a sign up, it says this site is managed by,

          6  you know, and it manages it for the owner. These are

          7  very well known people in the community, you know

          8  what I'm saying? This is not some obscure site. You

          9  know, I'm supposed to feel bad because people can't

         10  contact the national companies to place these bins

         11  illegally? I mean, isn't it trespassing to go on

         12  somebody's private property and drop these bins

         13  without their permission?

         14                 Go ahead, you wanted to say

         15  something, sir? I'm at a loss for words. I have to

         16  tell you, it's something I do not comprehend. How

         17  anybody thinks that they -- that for them to do

         18  charity or to do a hybrid of charity business or to

         19  do business -- here, where is the one from Richmond

         20  Terrace?

         21                 Mr. Gregersen, do you see where that

         22  box is located? Maybe you could tell me whose

         23  permission you had to put that box on a City

         24  sidewalk next to a City park with no commercial

         25  business for miles around. You're blocking the
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          2  sidewalk that people have to take to get to work,

          3  and the visual view that people have of their

          4  harbor.

          5                 MR. GREGERSEN: I can't give you any

          6  answer on that. This box has to be removed

          7  immediately because it's not --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Here I am with

          9  the DOT Commissioner of Staten Island, pointing it

         10  out to him, to get his agency down to remove it. So,

         11  it was removed because the City had to get in there.

         12                 What public good are you serving with

         13  this scenario?

         14                 MR. GREGERSEN: Yes, it doesn't look

         15  good. And we are not serving any good cause with

         16  this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: No, you're

         18  removing the clothing from the wastestream, isn't

         19  that what you said?

         20                 MR. GREGERSEN: That's the intention

         21  of the business, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I'm sorry, I

         23  interrupted you, sir.

         24                 MR. FIELD: I truly resent being

         25  lumped together with the whole scenario, you will
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          2  never find one of my boxes in the street, or

          3  obstructing a sidewalk or endangering children by

          4  putting it near a school. When that box was put on

          5  St. Nicholas and on the other area, okay, a phone

          6  call was made to the DOT. And this is almost every

          7  time, okay? We are told, if you keep it clean we

          8  have no problem. This is what we're working with,

          9  Councilman. I don't know who to go to.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I apologize DOT

         11  is not here. I am sure that our colleagues from the

         12  Department of Sanitation will tell us, but they

         13  won't speak for DOT. I will check with DOT. I'm

         14  sorry they're not here. They should be here. We will

         15  check with them.

         16                 But I'm looking at the Mayor's

         17  representatives here. Everybody is somewhat doubtful

         18  that DOT would give somebody permission over the

         19  phone to place a -- how much do one of these boxes

         20  weigh?

         21                 MR. FIELD: That box is 800 pounds.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: An 800-pound box

         23  on City property over a phone call. My experience

         24  with City government is that's not the case. Who do

         25  you talk to at DOT?
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          2                 MR. FIELD: It was a young lady and

          3  it's in the record. Mr. Simerton (phonetic) has the

          4  records in the office. You know, when he called.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Every box he

          6  calls this young lady?

          7                 MR. FIELD: This is the one case which

          8  you're referring to.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Nicholas Avenue?

         10                 MR. FIELD: I believe it was Nicholas

         11  Avenue, and they said as long as it's not a mess.

         12                 Now, that box was graffiti'd before

         13  the night rider went out, said the box was

         14  graffiti'd, he was instructed to bring it in. It was

         15  brought in, it was repainted, it was put out again

         16  within a week. It's now graffit'd again.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I live there.

         18  It's always been graffiti'd. I have not seen it --

         19  you know, it is always graffiti'd, it is always a

         20  mess.

         21                 MR. FIELD: Forgive me, I don't mean

         22  to correct you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I live there.

         24                 MR. FIELD: It is graffiti'd now, but

         25  I spoke to the gentlemen over here who said that he
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          2  seen that it was not graffiti'd and the kids did it

          3  again. I don't want that out there representing me.

          4  I spent too much money on these things to make them

          5  look aesthetically appealing, to have one --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: What makes you

          7  think that you can put these on public property?

          8                 MR. FIELD: What makes me think that I

          9  can put it on public property?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes. What right

         11  do you have to place an 800 pound steel canister on

         12  public property?

         13                 MR. FIELD: I, myself, didn't realize

         14  that there was anything that said that you could

         15  not, as long as it was responsibly handled.

         16                 You've got $4 million insurance on

         17  it, it's not in a walkway, it's being cleaned, it's

         18  being maintained, the snow removal is being taken

         19  away and it happens to be going for a good reason.

         20                 You know, the funny thing about our

         21  industry is that wherever you put a box, and these

         22  guys can prove that no matter what name you put on

         23  it, there will be clothing in there. The reason

         24  being is follows: None of the religious

         25  organizations are doing their rummage sales anymore
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          2  because it doesn't work. They sell about ten percent

          3  of what they got and they're carting away 90

          4  percent. It winds up costing them more money. They

          5  call us to take it away.

          6                 When Goodwill collects its product,

          7  they put about ten percent out in the store, the

          8  rest of it gets sold to exporters that goes

          9  overseas. So, there's a need, a convenient need to

         10  dispose of these items and not get it into the

         11  landfill, okay? We are able to do it. We're able to

         12  shed some profit and share it with righteous

         13  charities, and also take care of our families. We've

         14  been doing this 30 some odd years. But I do not look

         15  to go out there and get lawsuits, by God forbid a

         16  child getting hurt. I got a chute in my box, if you

         17  look at it, that cost three grand that keeps a kid

         18  out of the box from getting hurt, God forbid. I got

         19  a nine-year-old. I don't want this. We try to use

         20  our heads, we try to research it.

         21                 If a box got graffiti'd, it comes

         22  out.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Suppose I go

         24  into the metal recycling business, do you think I

         25  would have the right to put up an 800 pound box with
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          2  a sign saying put your cans in here? And that would

          3  be okay? Where do you live, sir?

          4                 MR. FIELD: I'm in Linbrook, New York.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: How many boxes

          6  are in Linbrook, New York?

          7                 MR. FIELD: About 20.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Is your company

          9  placed there?

         10                 MR. FIELD: Yes. We pay rent on

         11  several of them. We work with the town as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So there you've

         13  got permission from the town to do it?

         14                 MR. FIELD: We seek permission

         15  wherever we go --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Do you pay the

         17  town to do it there?

         18                 MR. FIELD: Not in Linbrook, no. But

         19  we have, we must have ten towns on the roll that we

         20  do their textile recycling for the municipality.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Can I see

         22  Nicholas Avenue again? How many in Linbrook look

         23  like the one --

         24                 MR. FIELD: That's my bad boy. None of

         25  them. And that won't either. That won't either. It
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          2  was just redone, I'm going to get rid of it. I don't

          3  need that to haunt me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: How about the

          5  one that Mrs. Vataliano complained about on her

          6  shopping plaza? Do you want to give me the inside

          7  story on that one?

          8                 MR. FIELD: Let me address hers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And then my

         10  colleagues have some questions.

         11                 MR. FIELD: Absolutely. Let me address

         12  that.

         13                 When the representative of Hewlett

         14  House went out and got permission for that box, a

         15  lot of them speak to a manager of an anchor store

         16  or, you know, whatever, to get permission. They come

         17  back and they make a site plan.

         18                 We go down and inspect the site plan

         19  before we put the box out to make sure it's safe.

         20                 The box went out. It was out there

         21  for a couple of months, we got a phone call, okay?

         22  We do not want it here.

         23                 Now, Mr. Simerton then approaches the

         24  person and says, look, I'm sorry we didn't speak to

         25  you. We thought we had authority to be there, can we
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          2  make a deal? Can we pay you rent? What do you want

          3  to pay? He'll say, well, look, we'll be happy to

          4  send you a package, and with that he got her

          5  approval and he sent the package.

          6                 By the time it got to her and got to

          7  her supervisor and was turned down, the box was out.

          8  It even said in a timely manner. I run a responsible

          9  business. I'm not looking to create --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But you, on a

         11  verbal okay of somebody who --

         12                 I mean, I just think it's so

         13  convenient. It's so convenient the way you just walk

         14  up to somebody, get a verbal okay from, you know,

         15  from somebody who probably isn't paying attention or

         16  whatever, and that's it, you put this box up.

         17                 You've been around a long time. You

         18  know that those people do not control the parking

         19  lot.

         20                 MR. FIELD: You would be amazed,

         21  Councilman. You don't get it so easy. We walk in to

         22  the manager of a KeyFood or, no, no, no, sorry, we

         23  don't want it here. We had a bad experience, this or

         24  that. Thank you very much, and you go on. It's very,

         25  very difficult to get a location. When we get a
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          2  location, we treasure it and we try to maintain it

          3  like we own the property.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Take a look at

          5  Nicholas Avenue.

          6                 MR. FIELD: That's one of my bad ones.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And take a look

          8  at Cody. Cody on Richmond Terrace. That box is --

          9                 MR. FIELD: We pay rent. We pay rent

         10  to Cody.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And there is

         12  graffiti on that box.

         13                 MR. FIELD: That just happened, and

         14  that will be cleaned up. The guy will go out with a

         15  brush. Mr. Cody gets a rental check every month from

         16  us.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, my

         18  colleague, Council Member Arroyo, has some

         19  questions.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: I wish we had

         21  quorum, we could vote it out today. You just opened

         22  up a pandoras box here.

         23                 I'm going to take -- I didn't get

         24  your name. You sell, you have two main customers,

         25  one in Texas that sells to the Mexicans. I'm going
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          2  to choose to believe that that was a very poor

          3  choice or words on your part.

          4                 MR. GREGERSEN: Yes, we can agree on

          5  that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Very poor

          7  choice of words.

          8                 What is your annual income as a

          9  business? And a three-part question: What is the

         10  annual income? And this goes for all of you. What

         11  charities get support from you and how many of them

         12  are providing services to the constituents I

         13  represent?

         14                 MR. CARTER: I'll say this for Planet

         15  Aid, I'm uninformed of the exact amounts that you're

         16  requesting there.

         17                 We do have an accounting department

         18  that handles that. However, there are some reputable

         19  charities. The information is in the packet that I

         20  submitted.

         21                 I also would like to add that in my

         22  effort, in the organization's effort to place our

         23  containers in the New York City area, in fact, we do

         24  have several on public property.

         25                 I, myself, have gone through various
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          2  channels. New York City Property Management

          3  Department.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Sir, I'm

          5  sorry. I asked a three-part question, if you don't

          6  have the answers to them then I suggest that all of

          7  you provide the information to the Committee

          8  Chairman so that he can share that with us as

          9  members of the Committee. I'm very interested to

         10  find out how my community is benefitting from the

         11  work that you're doing. And I got it that you are in

         12  this to make a profit, it's a business. How you run

         13  it is important. The impact that you have on the

         14  community is why we're sitting here having this

         15  conversation, and it is apparent that we need

         16  legislation to regulate the work that you do, and

         17  how you impact the streets of our City. That is very

         18  clear from the testimony I've heard from all four of

         19  you.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you, Madam

         22  Chairwoman. But I'm just not clear, did all three

         23  companies defer for the answer to that question? Did

         24  you give us the answer of what the annual --

         25                 MR. GREGERSEN: We can send you a copy
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          2  of the annual accounts.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So you'll

          4  provide us with the annual revenue and the profit

          5  and the loss statement and how much is the charity

          6  and what charities are?

          7                 MR. GREGERSEN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And me, I'm

          9  very selfish. I want to know how you are benefitting

         10  my district.

         11                 MR. FIELD: May I say something?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: No, it's okay,

         13  because I understand you don't have the information

         14  here with you, and this is not something that we're

         15  voting out of this Committee today, so I certainly

         16  hope that between now and then you're going to

         17  dazzle me, because I'm not dazzled right now.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Go ahead, you

         19  wanted to say something?

         20                 MR. FIELD: We initiated a program

         21  representing -- we represent a lot of Volunteer

         22  Firemen's Associations, whereby, when we put a box

         23  in an area, we go down to the local fire district

         24  and we tell them, if there is a structure fire in

         25  your community, anybody on the scene calls that 800
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          2  number and gives us gender and sizes, we'll stop

          3  what we're doing. We'll provide clothing, toys,

          4  dishes to the individuals. We've done it about 22

          5  times this year. During the winter we usually have a

          6  big influx. There is no profit on that, and we don't

          7  even like to be represented.

          8                 If it's a Hewlett House box, it will

          9  be on behalf of Hewlett House. If it's the Rockland

         10  County Volunteer Firemen's Association, it comes out

         11  of them.

         12                 You're working a business, Friday

         13  comes, you want to take a paycheck home and you want

         14  to take care of your family. You're motivated,

         15  you're profit motivated. When you're in the kind of

         16  business that we are, since we feel that way, I'd

         17  like to give back something and we do more than --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Right. I think,

         19  listen, I think that Council Member Arroyo's point

         20  is very good, that the boxes are in her community,

         21  in our communities, and all we've heard so far is a

         22  charity in Long Island and a charity in Rockland

         23  County.

         24                 MR. FIELD: Hewlett House is all over

         25  New York and Connecticut. They work with hospitals

                                                            72

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  in Staten Island.

          3                 I am going to have Jerry Barrish who

          4  is the President of Hewlett House, in addition to

          5  this package that you want from me, write you a

          6  letter and tell you exactly what she does in your

          7  community, in Queens and in Staten Island, and how

          8  we benefit financially and whatever else we do.

          9                 We're also doing a golf tournament

         10  for them on the 14th of this month. Whatever we can

         11  do. I lost a wife at 42, a beautiful gal with

         12  cancer, so I have a little personal emotional

         13  involvement here. We work very closely with them.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: We appreciate

         15  that.

         16                 Can you tell me your company, it's a

         17  for-profit company?

         18                 MR. GREGERSEN: It's for-profit, and

         19  it's also written on the boxes, it's for-profit.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, and so

         21  there is no charitable --

         22                 MR. GREGERSEN: No. As I see of a

         23  company, you know, we have all this used clothing,

         24  and there's a big need for used clothing in the

         25  third world and we try to provide this clothing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You don't give

          3  it to the third world, you sell it?

          4                 MR. GREGERSEN: All the clothes here

          5  we are talking about is being sold to the third

          6  world.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Is sold, okay.

          8                 And Planet Aid, just remind me again,

          9  in terms of a profit corporation, non-profit

         10  corporation?

         11                 MR. CARTER: We are non-profit. And

         12  the documentation is in the --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And the

         14  supplemental documentation that you will give us

         15  will show us administrative cost?

         16                 MR. CARTER: Actually I don't have a

         17  cost breakdown included in that packet.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But you will

         19  provide us with a follow-up?

         20                 MR. CARTER: That could happen.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay.

         22                 Do you have written agreements that

         23  you use with people whose permission you have to put

         24  the boxes on private property? A form?

         25                 MR. CARTER: We, at Planet Aid, don't
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          2  use an actual written agreement. We do have an oral

          3  agreement, due to the fact that if for any reason

          4  the property owner request the box will be removed,

          5  we do remove it immediately. We do not obligate

          6  anyone bound by any agreement or contract to keep

          7  the box there if at some point they don't want it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: How much do one

          9  of these boxes cost?

         10                 MR. FIELD: Let me preface by saying

         11  one thing. When you start in the community, you

         12  usually start with a user-friendly box, which is a

         13  small box and an open mouth, like these fellows are

         14  using, okay? When you start to get a bad experience,

         15  like a kid jumping into it or a kid going in and

         16  steeling the product and making a mess outside, we

         17  go to another opening which is a little bit more

         18  secure which will keep the amateur out. When that

         19  doesn't work, then we go to the boxes they have over

         20  there. That technology and that box, that box cost

         21  me about 1,400 to 1,500 to put on the street. Just

         22  to build it and put it on the street. It takes us a

         23  good three years to pay for the box. And that we can

         24  document. And you want documentation, I can give you

         25  interim statements that we provide to the Attorney
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          2  General's office and it tells you everything you

          3  want to know about what we make, what we give to

          4  charity, what we do. There is no secrets.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I find it hard

          6  to believe that you would take a box that cost

          7  $1,500 or $1,600 and just place it out somewhere

          8  without a written agreement or without written

          9  approval from the municipality.

         10                 MR. FIELD: When you say municipality,

         11  that's been, as I say, touch and go. We have never

         12  been confronted with this, and this is ten, 15 years

         13  that it's been working this way, and you heard your

         14  Sanitation supervisor say that up til six months ago

         15  he had no complaints.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: How long have

         17  you been putting boxes on Staten Island? The

         18  Hewlett's House box, how long have they been on

         19  that?

         20                 MR. FIELD: Under a year.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Under a year.

         22                 MR. FIELD: It's brand new. We've had,

         23  you know, praise the Lord, very little problems with

         24  it. We've had a good community response.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Maybe in
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          2  Linbrook, but not on the North Shore of Staten

          3  Island, sir.

          4                 MR. FIELD: No, Staten Island,

          5  Councilman. It has. We go there and to press the

          6  flesh, we go around and talk to people who try to

          7  keep it --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: They were put in

          9  our community. No one ever talked to me. No one ever

         10  talked to the Borough Commissioner of

         11  Transportation. No one ever talked to the

         12  Commissioner of Department of Sanitation. I checked

         13  with her.

         14                 How long have you been putting boxes,

         15  U'SAGAIN, on Staten Island?

         16                 MR. GREGERSEN: For two years. Two to

         17  three years.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And how many, in

         19  the last six months, how many new ones have you put

         20  on Staten Island? Because these have all sprouted up

         21  over the last few months.

         22                 MR. GREGERSEN: I think we have

         23  placed, four, five places.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And I'm sorry,

         25  you have how many on Staten Island?
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          2                 MR. GREGERSEN: Fifteen.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And you have how

          4  many, sir?

          5                 MR. FIELD: Eighteen.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And Planet Aid,

          7  how many do you have?

          8                 MR. CARTER: Approximately 33.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And how long

         10  have you been putting them on Staten Island?

         11                 MR. CARTER: I've been with the

         12  organization for just over a year. However, from my

         13  understanding, since 2001.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And how many

         15  have been put up in the last six months?

         16                 How long have you been there, for a

         17  year?

         18                 MR. CARTER: Just over a year.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And in the last

         20  year, how many have been put up on Staten Island?

         21                 MR. CARTER: In t he last year?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Mm-hmm.

         23                 MR. CARTER: Approximately 25 to 30.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: So there's been

         25  a dramatic increase, wouldn't you say?
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          2                 MR. CARTER: Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And for you

          4  there has been a dramatic increase. In fact, they

          5  just came in.

          6                 What brought you to the shores of

          7  Staten Island?

          8                 MR. CARTER: However, can I add,

          9  Councilman McMahon. In my effort to place out these

         10  containers, I have gone through various channels,

         11  speaking with the New York City property management,

         12  the local community boards, I've spoken with a

         13  representative from your office.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Because we

         15  called to complain, and we found, we tracked you

         16  down through the Internet. My aid is here, he can

         17  testify. He's the one who -- you didn't call us, we

         18  called you. And the Community Board Chairman wanted

         19  to be here, but he had a problem at work, but he

         20  would have said he never heard from anybody.

         21                 MR. CARTER: If this is Gary here,

         22  your representative, I've spoken with the gentleman

         23  here in your office.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Sure, from my

         25  office, yes. Because we called up.
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          2                 MR. CARTER: Yes. And we've complied

          3  and we've been, you know, ready to, and willing to

          4  work with the agencies.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I'm telling all

          6  three of you right now, it better come off private

          7  property in my district and Council Member Arroyo's

          8  district and everyone else --

          9                 MR. CARTER: Private or public?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Public. Because,

         11  public property, because when we get done with this,

         12  they will all be hauled away by the Department of

         13  Sanitation, and we will get the public benefit by

         14  recycling these bins. There is no place in my mind

         15  for businesses, whether they're solely for profit, a

         16  mixture, a non-for-profit, which we have to check on

         17  as well, to just drop their receptacles, 800 pound,

         18  nearly half a ton receptacles in positions like this

         19  throughout the City of New York and think that this

         20  is in any way to the benefit of the public.

         21                 It is unacceptable to me. I just

         22  want, I'm telling you right now, I'm warning you,

         23  get them off the street. Because if you don't get

         24  them off, we're going to get them off.

         25                 Council Member.
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          2                 Oh, I'm sorry. Planet Aid, what do

          3  you do with your clothing after you collect it?

          4                 MR. CARTER: The clothing is

          5  refurbished in some areas. Some of them are actually

          6  donated to other charities here in the US and

          7  abroad, and some of them are sold for various

          8  reasons, operation, budget and so forth.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. And I want

         10  to thank you for coming in. Thank you for your

         11  candor. And we hope that you will heed our warnings.

         12                 We also have Jay Allen here from

         13  Planet Aid from Boston, do you wish to testify, sir?

         14                 MR. ALLEN: Please.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Come on up.

         16                 Are you with Mr. Carter? Thank you,

         17  gentlemen. Thank you.

         18                 MR. ALLEN: Is this on?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Yes.

         20                 MR. ALLEN: Okay. I'll be brief,

         21  because it's well past lunchtime.

         22                 I'm down from Boston actually. I'm

         23  the Operations Manager for Planet Aid in Boston.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Do you know Mr.

         25  Carter?
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          2                 MR. ALLEN: What's that?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Do you know Mr.

          4  Carter?

          5                 MR. ALLEN: I do know Mr. Carter, yes.

          6  Okay.

          7                 And I just would like to say that I

          8  agree with virtually everything that you've said

          9  today. There is absolutely no reason for these boxes

         10  to be placed on public property, with or without

         11  permission. But I'm not saying that just to get

         12  along with you, okay? My background was goodwill

         13  industries in New England for years. I was recently

         14  recruited to work for Planet Aid and I've been here

         15  for about four months, and there have been issues

         16  that we're addressing right now. That, for instance,

         17  I believe we should have written permission for

         18  every box that we place, I don't care where it is.

         19  And, again, not just to get along with you, but it

         20  makes our life easier, okay? When we get complaints,

         21  or when there are problems or concerns, if we don't

         22  have it in writing, then we always end up looking

         23  like the bad guy, and that patently is not the case

         24  here.

         25                 You know, so my point I guess would
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          2  be, you know, we are more than willing to work with

          3  you people. I mean, I'm in Boston, and will be

          4  working with Rodney, but you're not wrong today, you

          5  know? You aren't wrong about what you're saying.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: If you're

          7  Operations Manager, why don't you tell them to get

          8  all the boxes off of public property. Let's start

          9  there. I've got them here in Brooklyn, I've got them

         10  there in Staten Island. We've got them in the Bronx.

         11  Let's do it.

         12                 MR. ALLEN: It's a done deal. They

         13  won't be there anymore.

         14                 We aren't going to do that, because,

         15  again, we are a non-profit, you know, but we still

         16  need to operate in business-like manners, okay? And

         17  that means that it costs us a fortune, first of all,

         18  to buy these boxes, and then to transport the boxes

         19  and then deal with the maintenance on the boxes. So,

         20  if we have a bad site, we lose money. It just

         21  doesn't make any sense to keep trying to put these

         22  boxes into bad spots, especially where they're not

         23  wanted.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Kevin, could you

         25  show the one of Planet Aid in the roadbed.
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          2                 Did you see that one, sir?

          3                 MR. ALLEN: Oh, yeah.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: You've seen it?

          5                 MR. ALLEN: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: I just want to

          7  know if that's a bad site? Is that a bad site?

          8                 MR. ALLEN: I can't speak to --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Well, look at

         10  it. It's in the road.

         11                 MR. ALLEN: Right. I would consider

         12  that a bad site.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Thank you.

         14                 MR. ALLEN: Now, let me shed some

         15  light on how we think that might happen, because you

         16  have been incredulous as to how this could happen.

         17  And frankly, I am, too, but I can explain it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: That is an exact

         19  description.

         20                 MR. ALLEN: Right. Hey, look, I'm from

         21  Maine, I get to the point, okay? So, here's the

         22  thing, the way that we have traditionally placed

         23  boxes of Planet Aid is we have site finders, we call

         24  them, people that we pay, that work for us but they

         25  are paid incentives to place boxes, okay?
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          2                 Planet Aid, in some instances has

          3  done a terrible job in monitoring these site

          4  finders, and where they tell us they can place

          5  boxes. I mean, they bring in a sheet and it says I

          6  got verbal permission from Joe over here to place

          7  the box, okay?

          8                 So, the way the business has been

          9  structured in the past, is that's exactly what we

         10  did. That's not how we do it anymore in Boston, and

         11  that's not the way we're going to do it anymore in

         12  New York, because it leaves us open, you know, these

         13  sorts of things.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: And when is the

         15  new policy going to be implemented in New York that

         16  every box siting for Planet Aid --

         17                 MR. ALLEN: Quarter of three.

         18                 MR. CARTER: Yes, I can add that that

         19  policy has already been --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Are you guys

         21  talking to each other?

         22                 Go ahead, Mr. Carter. I didn't mean

         23  to interrupt you, sir.

         24                 MR. CARTER: Yes, I wanted to add that

         25  that policy has already been implemented in the
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          2  organization, and that's a bad example. However,

          3  that box was probably taken off of the property and

          4  placed it aside because to my understanding the

          5  business had closed. Had shut down.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: But your folder

          7  says there are weekly inspections by your crew, and

          8  they're emptying them. So, somebody in your company

          9  has seen that box which has been there for at least

         10  half a year in the middle of the road.

         11                 MR. CARTER: No, that hasn't been

         12  there for half a year actually.

         13                 In addition to that, the program --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Mr. Carter.

         15                 MR. CARTER: -- The program that I

         16  mentioned in there has recently been implemented to

         17  the site maintenance program, and that box has been

         18  there approximately four or five months.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay. So, I said

         20  a half a year, which is six months. So, we're close.

         21  But certainly since the spring, since we witnessed

         22  the invasion of the bin snatchers on Staten Island

         23  and the rest of the City, that one has been sitting

         24  in the middle of the road.

         25                 Okay, well, Mr. Allen, I appreciate
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          2  you coming, and I appreciate you perceiving my

          3  incredulity at this whole process. And I hope that

          4  you live to your word, that you remove all of the

          5  Planet Aid boxes off of public property, and that

          6  you have written permission for those on private

          7  property, and I hope that the others in the industry

          8  follow your lead. But we will certainly be back,

          9  we're going back to the drawing board to make some

         10  changes to this bill and we'll be back here and

         11  we're going to bring it back to the whole Council

         12  because this is clearly an issue that needs to be

         13  voted on by the City Council.

         14                 So, I thank you, Council Member

         15  Arroyo. Thank you again, you gentlemen, for coming,

         16  your candor, and let's look forward to a better and

         17  cleaner New York City. Thank you.

         18                 On behalf of Speaker Quinn, it is my

         19  privilege to adjourn the meeting of the New York

         20  City Council Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste

         21  Management, October 10th, 2006.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 2:50 p.m.)
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